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Inciependent Audiors Report

To the Members of Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited (the “Company”)
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the statement of profit and loss (including
other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended 31 March 2025, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its loss and other
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, loss and other comprehensive loss, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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BSR &Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements \

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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BSR &Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2025 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

the qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) of the Act and
paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a.
b.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

(ii)

the Note 35(vi)(a) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, as on the date of this audit
report that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 35(vi)(b) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, as on the date of this audit report, that the Company
shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“‘Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.
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BSR &Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited

f.  Based on our examination which included test checks, except forthe instances mentioned below,
the Company has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account, which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software:

i. atthe database level to log any direct data changes;

ii. at the application level for certain fields/tables relating to all the significant financial processes;
and

iii. for certain changes at the application level which were performed by users having privileged
access rights.
Further, where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled, we did not come across any instance of
audit trial feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trial where enabled, has been
preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

A. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
public company. Accordingly, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16)
of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

3

Sampad Guha Thakurta

Partner
Place: Chennai Membership No.: 060573
Date: 30 August 2025 ICAI UDIN:25060573BMOKGK6088
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2025

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (@) (A) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has maintained proper

U]

(ii)

(b)

()

(d)

(B)

records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and
equipment. However, during the year, the Company transferred its property, plant and
equipment to a newly incorporated joint venture of the holding company. Consequently, other
than capital work in progress, there were no property, plant and equipment held by the Company
as at 31 March 2025.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has maintained proper
records showing full particulars of intangible assets. However, during the year, the Company
transferred its entire intangible assets to a newly incorporated joint venture of the holding
company. Consequently, there were no intangible assets held by the Company as at 31 March
2025.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its property, plant and equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in a
phased manner over a period of three years. However, no physical verification of assets were
carried out during the year. Hence, we are unable to comment on the discrepancies, if any.
During the year, the Company transferred its property, plant and equipment to a newly
incorporated joint venture of the holding company. Consequently, other than capital work in
progress, there were no property, plant and equipment held by the Company as at 31 March
2025.

The Company does not have any immovable property (other than immovable properties where
the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee). Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, during the year, the Company transferred certain
inventory to a newly incorporated joint venture of the holding company. Consequently, it does
not hold any physical inventories as at 31 March 2025 other than materials forming part of
capital work in progress which have been physically verified by the management during the
year. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and
coverage as followed by management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed
on verification between the physical materials and the book records that were more than 10%
in the aggregate of each class of inventory.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2025 (Continued)

(b)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii) (a)

(b)

(viii)

(ix) (a)

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the
Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account
of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.
Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a) to 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any
guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”). In respect of the investments made by the Company, in our opinion the provisions of
Section 186 of the Act have been complied with.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the products
manufactured by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion, the undisputed statutory dues including Goods
and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs
or Cess or other statutory dues have been regularly deposited by the Company with the
appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or
other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2025 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other
statutory dues, which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of
any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

Page 6 of 10



BSR &Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2025 (Continued)

()

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv) (a)

(b)

(xv)

of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have
been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries as defined under
the Act. Further, the Company did not have any associates or joint ventures (as defined under
the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2025.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries (as defined under the Act). Further, the Company did not have any associates
or joint ventures (as defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2025.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company and according
to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a private limited company and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by
the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion and based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company is
not required to have an internal audit system as per Section 138 of the Act. However, the
Company has an internal audit system which is commensurate with the size and nature of its
business except that internal audit has only been completed for part of the year.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2025 (Continued)

(xvi) (@) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India

(b)

()

(d)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does not have any
Core Investment Company (CIC) as part of the Group.

The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 131,308 in the current financial year and Rs.
164,207 in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Sampad Guha Thakurta

Partner

Place: Chennai Membership No.: 060573
Date: 30 August 2025 ICAI UDIN:25060573BMOKGK6088
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2025

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Aequs Consumer
Products Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2025, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2025 (Continued)

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Sampad Guha Thakurta

Partner
Place: Chennai Membership No.: 060573
Date: 30 August 2025 ICAI UDIN:25060573BMOKGK6088
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Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited

. Balance Sheet

CIN:U28995KA2019PTC129087

(All amounts are in X thousands, except share data, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Notes
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and cquipment 4 (i) - 156,784
Right-of-use assets 4 (iit) 367,084 587,619
Capital work-in-progress 4 (ii) 3,856,087 1,722,700
Intangible assets 4 (iv) - 565
Financial assets
Investments 5() - 41,200
Other financial assets 5(vi) 354,851 58,938
Income tax assets 6A 8,667 910
Other non-current assets 6() 382,539 96,505
Total non-current assets 4.969,228 2,665,221
Current assets !
Inventories 7 - 62,877
Financial assets
Investments 5(i1) - 22,655
Trade receivables S(iii) - 44,541
Cash and cash equivalents 5(iv) 208,769 125,781
Bank balances other than above 5(v) 163,351 33,370
Other financial assets 5(vi) 18,664 57
Other current assets 6(ii) 397,322 718,833
Total current assets 788,106 1,008,114
Total assets 5,757,334 3,673,335
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 8 854,748 653,719
Other equity 9 2,166,607 1,223,172
Total equity 3,021,355 1,876,891
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 10(1) 1,232,791 619,295
Lease liabilities 4(iii) 376,331 572,428
Other financial liabilitics 10(ii1) - 41,190
Provision for employee benefits 13 10,286 4,900
Contract liabilities 12 192,919 .
Total non-current liabilities 1,812,327 1,237,813




Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited
Balance Sheet

CIN:U28995KA2019PTC129087

(AUl amounts are in % thousands. except share data, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Notes
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 10(3i) 443,240 18,911
Lease liabilities 4(iit) 18,945 23,628
Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 10(i1) 7,104 -
enterprises; and
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 10(i1) 200,004 119,042
enterprises and  small enterprises
Other financial liabilities 10(iii) 221,638 345,365
Provision for employee benefits 13 13,604 6,636
Contract liabilities 12 - 38,867
Other current liabilities 11 19,117 6,182
Total current liabilities 923,652 558,631
Total liabilities 2,735,979 1,796,444
Total equity and liabilities 5,757,334 3,673,335
Summary of material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited
CIN : U28995KA2019PTC129087

for BSR & Co.LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 101248W/W-100022

SEEBE W2

Sampad Guha Thakurta

Partner

Membership No.: 060573

Place: Chenp al
Date: Sol 2]20 25

Suraj Hukkeri
Director
DIN: 09536262

Place: Belagavi

Dinesh Iyer
Director
DIN: 09515485

Place: Belagavi

Date: August 12,2025 Date: August 12, 2025

Sambhram Pise
Company Secretary
Membership No.: A31429

Place: Belagavi
Date: August 12, 2025



Acqus Consumer Products Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss

(Al amounts are in 2 thousands. except sharve duta, unless othersise stated)

CIN:U28995KA2019pTC 129087

For the year ended

For the year ended

Not
otes March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Income
Revenue from operations 14 158,073 311,690
Other income 15 54,644 20815
Total income (A) 212,717 332,505
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 16 120,966 260,637
Changes in inventorics of work in progress and finished goods 17 6,548 (12,833)
Employee benefit expenses 18 72,718 97.472
Net impairment losses on financial assets AN'S) 419
Other cxpenses 19A 98,378 114.48)
Total expenses (B) 300,725 460,176
Earnings before finance cost, depreciation and amortisation, exceptional (88,008) (127,671)
items and tax (A-B)
Finance cost 21 13,494 73,669
Depreciation and amortisation expense 20 26,486 57,176
Loss before exceptional items and tax (127,988) (258,516)
Exceptional items
Impairment loss on investments 22 41,200 1,783
Deferred business consideration no longer required written back 35(ii) (43,855)
Loss before tax (125,333) (260,299)
Income tax expense
- Current tax 25 - -
- Deferred tax 25 - -
Total tax expense - =,
Loss for the year (125,333) (260,299)
Other comprehensive loss
[tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

- Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 13 (432) (503)

- Income tax relating to these items = =
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (432) (503)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (125,765) (260.802)
Eamings per equity share (basic and diluted) : 30 (1.54) (4.65)
[Nominal value per share: 210 (March 31, 2024: 210)]
Summary of material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an inlegral part of these [inancial slatements,

As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Finm Registration Number: 101248W/W-100022

Sampad Guha Thakurta
Partner
Membership No.: 060573

Place: (henp al
Date: 30| 2}2925

Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Acqus Consumer Products Private Limited

CIN: U28995KA20|9PTC|2908\7
o |
— = 3

Suraj Hukkeri
Director
DIN: 09536262

Place: Belagavi
Date: August 12, 2025

Dinesh lyer
Director
DIN: 09515485

Place: Belagavi
Date: August 12, 2025

Sambhram Pise
Company Secretary
Membership No.: A31429

Place: Belagavi
Date: August 12, 2025



Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity

(Al amowns are in € thousands. except share data, unless otherwise stated)

CIN:U28995K.A2019PTC129087

A. Equity sharc capital

Note Amount
Balance as at April 1, 2023 368,518
Changes during the year 8 285,201
Balance as at March 31, 2024 653,719
Changes during the year 8 201,029
Balance as at March 31, 2025 854,748
B. Other equity

Other Equity
Reserves and surplus
| . Commeon Share options
Particulars Rela!ncd Secur}tles control capital outstanding Other reserves Total other equity
carnings premium
Reserve account

Balance as at April 1, 2023 (252,625) 73,855 6,739 2,297 61,449 (108,285)
Loss for the year (260,299) - . % (260,299)
Other comprehensive loss for the year (503) - - C £ (303)
Total comprehensive loss for the vear (260.802) - - - = (260,802)
Transactions with owners of the Company
Premium received on shares issued during the year - 1.069,799 - - = 1,069,799
Share issue expenses - (4,424) - - = (4.424)
Total contributions and distributions - 1,065,375 - - = 1.065.375
Finance guarantee received during the year - . “ . 525,134 525,134
Cmployee stock option expenses - - - 1,749 - 1,749
Sub total - - - 1,749 525,134 526,882
Balancce as at March 31, 2024 (513,427)) 1,139,230 6,739 4,046 586.583 1,223,172
Balance as at April 01, 2024 (513,427) 1,139,230 6,739 4,046 586,583 1,223,172
Loss for the year (125.333) - - - = (125,333)
Other comprehensive loss for the year (432) - - - - (432)
Taotal comprehensive loss for the year (125,765)| - - - = (125.765)
Transactions with owners of the Company
Premium received on sharcs issued during the year 1,068,981 - - - 1,068,981
Share issue expenses (2.500) - - - (2.500)
Total contributions and distributions - 1,066,481 - - = 1,066,481
Finance guarantee received during the year . . - . 279 279
Employee stock option expenses - - 2,441 - 2.441
Sub total - - - 2,441 279 2.720
Balance as at March 31, 2025 (639,192) 2,205,711 6.739 6,487 586,862 2,166,607

Sumimary of material accounting policies (note 2)

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even dale atlached

for BSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Finm Registration Number: 101248 W/W-100022

Sampad Guha Thakurta
Pariner
Membership No.: 060373

Place: Chenp al
Date: ?_;O| 2]2925

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited

CIN : U28995KA2049PTC 129087

Suraj Hukkeri
Director
DIN: 09536262

Place: Belagavi

Date: August 12. 2025

Dinesh lyer
Director
DIN: 09515485

Place: Belagavi

Date: August 12,2025

N

Sambhram Pisc ~
Company Secretary
Membership No.: A31429

Place: Belagavi

Date: August 12, 2025



Acqus Consumer Products Private Limited CiIN:U2899SKA2019PTC 129087
Statement of Cash Flows
(Al amounts are in T thousands, excepr share data, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before tax (125,333) (260,299)
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense 26,486 57,176
Equity-scttled share-based payment transactions 244 1,748
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - (208)
Liabilities no longer required written back . (927)
Loss allowance on trade receivables 2,115 350
Finance cost 13,494 73.669
Provision for slow moving inventory 24,192 7.339
Unrealised exchange (gain)/loss 1,018 (2.181)
Impairment loss on investments 41,200 1,783
Deferred business consideration no longer required (43,855) 5
Interest income (34,146) (9.725)
Interest income on deferred business consideration (reler note 35(i)) (18,032) -
Gain from mutual funds (299) (3,578)
Unwinding of discount on security deposit (2,130) (1,209)
Provision for doubtful advances and advances written ofl’ 1,393 2,537
11,680 126,973
Working capital adjustments
- (Increase) / decrease in trade receivables (59,603) 5318
- Decrease / (increase) in inventories (30,990} (29,291)
- (Increase) / decrease in other financial assets (625) 24,294
- (Increase) in other assels (134,159) (194.199)
- Increase in trade payables 175,799 71,876
- Increase in provision for employee benelits 35,940 5.447
- Increase in other financial liabilities 24 849 3,896
- Increase in other current liabilities 15,214 3,760
- Increase in contract liabilities 185.735 37.231
Cash generated from / (used in) operations 98,507 (204,993)
Income taxes paid, net of refunds (7.756) (507)
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities 90,751 {205.500)
Cash Mow from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and capital (2,024.989) (1,473.598)
Proceeds from sale ol property, plant and equipment - 1.510
Proceeds from sale of mutual funds (including gain) 43217 -
Investment in mutual funds (20,263) (19,077)
Interest received 3.785 9,305
Invesiment in bank deposits (1.629,904) (25.470)
Proceeds from maturity of bank depusits 1,510,643 D
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (2,117,511) (1,507,330)
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds [rom issue of equity shares 1,270,010 1,340,000
Share issue expenses (2,500) (4,424)
Proceeds rom long term borrowing 933,747 836,654
Repayment of long term borrowing (78,290) (314.463)
Proceeds from related parly borrowing 180.000 15.000
Repayment of related party borrowing - (5.000)
Principal payments of lease liability (18,819) (8.011)
Proceeds rom /(repayment of) short term borrowing (net) (6.263) (11,195
Finance cosls paid (146.211) (20,357)
Net cash generated from financing activities (C) 2,131,674 1,828,204
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ( A+ B + C) 104,914 115,374
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 125,781 10,407
Transfer of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 35(i)) (21.925) -
Cash and cash cquivalents at the end of the year 208,769 125,781




Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows
(All amounts are in ¥ thousands, except share data, unless otherwise stated)

CIN:U28995KA2019PTC129087

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per statement of cash flows
Cash and cash equivalents Irefe;" note S(iv)|
Balances with banks
- current accounts 198,761 18,252
- deposits with original maturity of three months or less 10,002 107,526
Cash on hand 6 3
208,769 125,781

Summary of material accounting policies (note 2).

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

Jor BSR& Co.LLP Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited
Firm Registration Number: 101248W/W-100022 CIN : U28995KA2019PTC 129087

Sampad Guha Thakurta Suraj Hukkeri
Partner Director

Membership No.: 060573 DIN: 09536262
Place: Chenpat Place: Belagavi

Date: 30| 2}29 25 Date: August 12, 2025

- (8

Dinesh Iyer —Eambham P -

Director
DIN: 09515485

Place: Belagavi
Date: August 12, 2025

Company Secretary
Membership No.: A31429

Place: Belagavi
Date: August 12, 2025



Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited CIN:U28993KA2019PTC 129087
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Al amounis are in X thousands_except share data. unless othersvise statedj

1. Background

Acqus Consumer Products Privale Limited (the Company’) was incorporated on October 25, 2019 under the Companies Act 2013, in India and became @ wholly subsidiary
of Aequs Limited (Formerly known as Acqus Private Limited) in December 202 (. The Company is engaged in the business of contract manufacturing of Kitchen and home
appliances. The commercial operations of the Company started in February, 2021.

The Company s establishing a contract manufacturing facility for advanced technology products in Hubballi Durable Goods Cluster, ftigatti Dharwad, Kamataka.

2. Material accounting policics:
This note provides a list of Lhe material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements, These policies have been consistently applicd to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act)
[Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(ii) Historical cost convention

“The financial statcments have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
*  certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value;

«  share-hased payments; and

* defined employce benefit plans

(iii) New and amended standards adopted by the Company:

Ministry of’ Corporate Aflairs ("MCA™) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued
irom time to time. During year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS — |17 Insurance Conlracts and amendments o Ind AS 116 — Leases, relating Lo sale and
leaseback ransactions, applicable to the Company w.e.[. April 1, 2024. The Company has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on its evaluation has determined that
it does not have any significant impact in its financial statements.

(iv) Operating cycle

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other crileria set oul in the Schedule 111 (Division 11)
lo the Act. Based on the nalure of products and the time between the acquisition of asset for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivaients, the Company has
ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current / non- current classili cation of assets and liabilities.

(v) Accounting policy on EBITDA

As permitted by the Guidance Note on Division 1] -Ind AS Schedule [Il o the Companies Act 2013, the Company has elected to present eamings before inlerest. tax,
depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss. The Company measures EBITDA on the basis of protit/ (loss)
from continuing operations. In its measurement, the Coinpany does not include depreciation and amortization cxpense, finance costs, exceptional items and income tax
expenses.

(vi) Functional and presentation currency

The (inancial slatement of the Company are presented in Indian Rupees (INR / Z), which is the functional currency of the Company and the presentation currency for the
{inancial statement, All amounts disclosed in the financial stalement have been rounded to Lhe nearest thousands as per the requirement of Schedule 1{l of Companies Act.
2013, unless otherwise stated. Ainounts mentioned as "0" in the financial stalements denote amounts rounded off being less than 2 0.50 thousands.

b) Going concern assumption

he Company has incurred loss of ¥ 1,25.765 lor the year ended March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: 2 260.802) and has accumulated losses of ¥ 639,192 as at that date
(March 31, 2024: % 513.427). Nolwithstanding accumulaled losses, as on March 31, 2025, the net worth of the Company is % 3,021,355 (March 31, 2024: ¥ 1.876.891) and
ils current assets exceed its current liabilities by 2 135,546 (March 31, 2024: ¥ 449.483). The management of the Company believes that the Company will be able to
continue Lo operate as da going concern for the Toresecable (uture and meet all its liabilities as they fall due for payment based on its future cash low projection and support
letter from the parent.

(c) Foreign currency translations transactions and halances

Transactions and balances

In preparing the financial stalemend, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency are recorded at the rales of exchange prevailing on the date of the
transaction. At the end ol*each reporting period, monetary items denominaled in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value thal are denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing on the dale when the fair value was detennined.
Non-mongtary items that are measured in teoms of historical cost in a forcign currency are not translated

£k
£

/]




Aequs Consunier Products Private Limited CIN:UZB995KA2019PTC 129087
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Al amounts are in 3 thousands, except share data, unless othervise stated)

2. Material accounting policics (continucd)

(d) Revenue from contract with customers
The Company camns ils revenue [tom sale of manufactured goods. The Coimpany has determined that it is a principal in all ils arrangements with its customers,

The Company recognises revenue when control of goods has transferred to customers and there are no unfulfilled obligations that could affect the customer's acceplance of
the products. Control ol goods is considered to be transferred at a point-in-time when goods have been dispatched or delivered, as per the terms agreed with the customer as
thal is when the legal title, physical possession and risks and rewards of goods transfers Lo the customers.

The Company does not have any contracts where the period between the transfer ol goods [0 the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. Accordingly, the
Company does not adjust any ol the transaction prices for time value of money. Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of
transaction price allocated to that performance obligation. As a practical expedient, the Company has opted not to disclose the information in respect of performance
obligations that are part of contracts that has an original cxpected duration of one year or less.

A contracl asset i recognised when the Company gets Lhe right to consideration in exchange for goods that it has translerred to the customers and the right is condilional
upon acts other than passage ol time, When the payment exceeds the valuc of goods supplied, a contract liability (advance from customers) is recognised.

(e) Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities auributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws cnacted or subsiantively cnacted at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates
posilions taken in tax rclums with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a laxation
authority will accepl an uncerlain tax treatment. The Company mcasures its tax balances either based on the most likely amounl or the expected value, depending on which
method provides a better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabiliiies and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liabilily in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting prolit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred incomne tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been cnacted or
substantially enacled by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax iiability is
settled.

Deferred tax assels are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise
those temporary differences and losses. Deferred Llax assets and liabilities are offsel when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and
when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right Lo offset
and intends either Lo settle on a nel basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Delerred tax assets are reviewed at cach reporting date.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss. except 1o the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive incomme or directly in equity. In this
casc, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

() Leases

At inceplion of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or conlains. a Icase if the contract conveys the right to control the
use of'an identified asset for a period ol time in exchange for consideration.

As a Lessee

Leases arc recognised as a right ol"use asset and a corresponding liability at the date al which the leased assel is available for use by the Company. Contracts imay contain
both lcase and non-lease components. The Company allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative siand-alone
prices

Assets and liabilities arising rom a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

. Fixed payments (including in-subslance fixed payiments). less any lease incentives receivable

. Variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rale as at the commencement date,
»  Amounts expected to be payable by the entity under residual value guarantees.

. The exercise price of a purchase option if the entity is reasonably certain to exercise thal option.

. Payments ol penalties for tenminating the Jease, il the lease tenn reflects the Company exercising that option.

The lease liability is measured al amortised cost using the effective interest method. [t is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in
an index or rate, if there is a change in the Company’s estimale of the amount expected t be payable under a residual value guarantee, if the Company changes its
asscssiment of whelher it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination oplion or if there is a revised in-substance [ixed lease payment. )
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way. a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-ol-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced o zero.

l.case payments to be made under reasonably certain extensions options are also included in the measurement of the liability. The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, [f'the raic cannot be readily detennined, as in the case ol fease of buildings. the Company's incremental borrowing rate is used, being the
rate that the Company would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary Lo obtain the assel of similar value (o the right of use asset in a similar ecconomic enviromment with
simifar lenns, securily and conditions.




Acqus Consumer Products Private Limited CIN:U28995KA2019P7C 129087
Notes forming part of the financial statements

(All amownrs are in R thousands, except share dala, unless viherwise stated)

2, Materiat accounting policies (continued)

(f) Leases (continued)

Lease payments are allocaled between principal and [inance cosl. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a conslant periodic rate
of"interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right ot use assets are measured at cost comprising ol the following:

. The amount of the initial mcasurement of lease liability

. Any Icase payments made on or beforc the commencement daic less any lease incentives reccived

*  Any initial direct cost

O Restoration cost

Right of use assels are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's uselul life and the lease tenm on a straight line basis. Where the Company is reasonably certain to
exercise the purchase option, the right ol usc assel is depreciated over the underlying asset's uselul life.

Payment associated with short-term Iease of equipment and all lcascs of low-value assels are recognised on a straight line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 imonths or less

g) Impairment of assets

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews Lhe carrying value ol its properly, plant and equipment, intangible assels and right of use assets to detenmine whether there
is any indication that the carrying value of those assets may not be recoverable through continuing use. Il any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assel is
reviewed in order to determine the extent of impainnent foss, if any. Where the asset does nol generate cash flows that are independent from ather assets, the Company
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs,

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimaled future cash llows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discounl rate that reflects current market assessments of the lime value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted, An impairment loss is recognised in the slatement ot profit and loss as and when the cartying value of an assel exceeds its recoverable amount.

Where an impainment loss subsequently reverses, Lhe carrying value of the asset (or cash generating unit) is increased Lo the revised cstimate of its recoverable amount, so
that the increased carrying value does nol exceed the carrying value that would have been detennined had no impainment loss been recognised for the assct (or cash
gencrating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss immediatcly.

(h) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash Mows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposils held at cali with financial institutions, other short-
tenn, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which arc subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts.

(i) Trade reccivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers lor goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business and reflects Company’s uncondiiional right to
consideralion (that is, payment is due only on the passage of time). Trade receivables are recognised initially at the transaction price as they do not contain significant
financing components, The Company holds the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
atmortised cosl using lhe elfective interest method, less loss allowance.

(j) Inventories

Inventorics include raw materials (including storcs, spares and packing material). work in progress, stock-in-trade and linished goods. Inventorics are stated at the lower of
cast and nct realizable value. Cost ol raw materials comprise of cost of purchases, freight and other expenses incurred in bringing the raw materials lo the manufacluring
location, excluding rebates and discounts.

Cosl of work in progress and finished goods comprises direct inatenials. direet labour and an appropriate portion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure. the lalter being
allocated on the basis o’ normal operaling capacity.

Costs are assigned Lo individual items on weighted average cost basis which is calculated on the basis of total cost of raw materials divided by the quantities purchasced. Net
realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the esiimaled costs of completion and the estimaled costs necessary to make the sale.

(k) Investments in equity instruments of subsidiarics

The Company measures its investments in equity instruments of subsidiarics at cost in accordance with Ind AS 27.
The managemenl assesses the performance of these entities including the [uture projections, relevant economic and market conditions in which they operate to identify il
there is any indicator of impairment in the carrying value of the investments, In case indicalors ol impairment exist, the impairment loss is measured the higher ol

(i) “fair value less cost of disposal” detennined using markel price infonnation. where available. and

(i) “value-in-use’ eslimates recoverable ainounts determined using discounted cash flow projections. where available,

The fair value less costs ol disposal is determined using the market approach. The future cash flow projections are specific to the entity based on its business plan and may
not be the same as Lthose ol market participants. The future cash flows consider key assumplions such as revenue projections, EBITDA, tenninal growlh rates. cle, with due
consideralion for the potential risks given the curtent econemic environment in which the enlity operates. The discount rates used with required tax rates based on weighted
average cost of capital and reflects markel’s assessment of the risks specific o the assel as well as time value of money, The recoverable amount estimates are bused on
judgments, estimates, assumplions and market data as on reporting dale and ignore subsequent changes in the economic and market conditions. g




Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited CIN:U28995KA2019PTC 129087
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Al amounts are in % thousands. exeepl share daia, unless otherwise stated)

2. Materinl accounting policies (continued)

(1) Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(i) Classification

The Company classifies its financial assels in the following measurement categories®

0 those to be measured subscquently at Fair value (either through other comprehensive income. or through profit or loss). and

= those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entily's business mode) for managing the financial assels and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured al fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in equily instruments (not held for
trading purposc). this will depend on whether the Company has made an imevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment a1 faic
value through other comprehensive income.

(it} Recognition
Regular way purchases and sales of [inancial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sale the financial assets,

(1i) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a [inancial assct (other than trade receivables) at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable lo the acquisizion of the financial assel. Transaction costs of financial assets carried al fair value through profit or
lass are expenscd in profit or loss,

() Amortized cost: Assels that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and inlerest are measured at
amorlized cost. Interest income from Ihese financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interesl rate method.

(b) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCL): Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financ:al assets, where the
assets' cash flows represent solcly payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of jmpairment gains or losscs, intercst revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial assel is
erecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses). [nterest income
from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other expenses and
impairment expenscs in other expenses.

(c) Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOC! are measured at fair value
through profit and loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

(iv) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a [orward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with ils assets carried al amortised cost. I'he impainnent methodology applicd
depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 24 details how the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit
visk. For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach required by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses Lo be
recognised [rom initial recognilion of the receivables.

() Derecognition of financial assets

A financial assct is derecognised only when

. The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash [lows from the financial asset or

+  retains Lhe contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset. but assumes a contractual obligation 10 pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether il has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assct. In such
cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity Company not transferred substantially all risks and rewards ol ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset
is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial assct nor retains substantially all risks and rewards o vwnership of the linancial assct. the inancial asset is derecognised
il the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the (inancial assel. the asset is continued (o be recognised to the exlent
ol continuing involvement in the financial asset.

(i) lncome recognition
Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit and loss is disclosed as interest income within finance income. Interest income from [inancial assels at
amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest method and is recognised in the statement ol profit and loss using the effective interest rate method.

i) Offsetting finuncial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are ofTset. and the net amount is included in the Balance Sheel where there is a legally enforceable right o olTset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to scitle on a net basis or realisc the assel and settle the liability simultancously.

(m) Property, plant and equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment (PPE) are stated at historical cost applicd on transition lo Ind AS less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly altributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carying amount or recognised as a scparale assel, as appropriate. only when it
is probable that [uture econamic benefits associated with the item wilt flow to the Company and the cosl of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a scparate asset is derecognized when replaced, All other repairs and mainienance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. An assel's canying amounl is wrillen down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asscl's
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in statement ol profil and loss within other income/(expenses).
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2. Matcerial accounting policies (continued)

(m) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation methods, estimated usefid lives and residial value

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cosl, net ol their residual values, over their estimated uselul lives or, in case of cerlain leased
machinenies, the shorler lease tenm as follows:

Asset Management Useful life as per Schedule 11
assessment of useful

Leasehold improvement 10 years or lease|Not Applicable
period, whichewer i
lower.

Plant and machinery 1 10 10 years |B to 15 years

Computers equipment 210 3 years 310 6 years

Furniture and [iltings 110 5 years 10 years

Office equipment | 103 years 3 years

The uscful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation done by the management which are higher than those specified by Schedule I to the Companies Act,
2013, in order to reflect the aclual usage of the assets. The residual values are nol more than 3% of the original cost of the assel.

The assets' residual values and uselul lives are reviewed, and adjusted il appropriale, at the end of each reporting period. Assets in the course of development or construction
are not depreciated.

(n) Intangible asscts
An intangiblc asset shall be measured initially at cosl. Intangible assets include Computer software, Cosls associated with maintaining soltware programimes are recognised

as an expense as incured

The Company amortises intangible assets wilh finite useful [ife using the straight-line inethod over the Ffollowing cstimated useful lives:

Asset Useful life adopted by|Usclul life as per Schedule 1
the Company  (in|(in ycars)
yeurs)

Compulter Software 2-10 years Nol applicable

(0) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabiiilies for goods and services provided Lo the Company prior to the end of the lInancial year which are unpaid, The amounts are unsecured.
Trade and other payabics are presented as curvent liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recogniscd initially at their fair
value and subsequently incasured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(p) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net ol transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost., Any difference between the
proceeds (net of Lransaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid
on the establishment ol loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that il is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee 1s deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the tee is
capitalised as a prepayment for tiquidity services and amortised over the period ol the facility Lo which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabiiities unless the Company has an unconditional right to deler settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period. Where there is a breach ol'a material provision of a long-tenm loan arrangement on or before the ¢nd of the reporting period with the effeet that the liability becones
payable on demand on the reporting dale, the entity dees not classily the liability as current. if the lender agreed. afier the reporting perivd and belore the approval of the
[inancial stalements or issuc, not (o demand payment as a consequence of the breach,

General and specific borrowing costs that are dircetly attributable 1o the acquisition. construction or production of a qualitying asset are capitalised during the period of time
that is required to complete and prepare the assct for its intended use or sale, Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily lake a substantial perivd ol time (o get ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income eamed on the temporary investiment of specilic borrowings pending their expenditure on qualilying assels is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred,

(q) Employce bencfits

Short-term obligations

Liabtiities for wages and salaries, including non-monctary benefils that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the
cmployees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the end ol the reporting pericd and are measured at the amounts expected o be
paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabititics are presented as current employce benelit obligations in the balance sheel,

Other loag-term employee benefit obligations
Leave obligations are presented as current Kabilities in the balance sheet since the entity does not have an unconditional right Lo defer seutlement for at least twelve monlhs
afler the reporting period, regardless of when-the aclual seitlement is expected Lo occur.
Defined benefit obligations

The Company operates the lollowing post-umployiment scheimes

(a) delined benelit plans such as gratuity: and

(b) defined contribution plans such as provident fund and Employee State [nsurance (1:S1),
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2. Material accounting policics (continued)

() Employee benefits (continued)

Defined benefit plans - grawin: obligations

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period, The
defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The presenl value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated (uture cash outflows by relerence lo markel yields at the
end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating Lo the tenns of the related obligation

I'he intercst cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefil obligation. This cost is included in employee benetit expense in the
statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurciment gains and losses arising {rom experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income. They arc included in retained camings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Defined contribution plans:

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted [or as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they
are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extenl that a cash refund or a reduction in the fulure payments is available.

Share-based payments
Share-based compensalion benelils are provided to employees through the Aequs Slock Option Plan iniroduced by Aequs Limited (Formerly known as Aequs Privale
Limited). The cross charge of these expenses are recognised as a part of Employee benefit expenses.

(r) Contributed equity
Incremental cosls directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equily as a deduction, net of tax, from securities premium.

(s) Earnings per share

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic eamings/ (loss) per share is calculated by dividing:

= the profit attributable to owners ol the Company

. by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.

(1) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings/ (loss) per share adjusts the [igures used in the determination of basic eamnings per share to take into account:

. the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and

. the weighled average number of additional equily shares that would have been outslanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive polential equity shares.

Potenlial equity shares arc deemed to be dilulive only it their conversion to equily shares would decrease the net profit per sharc or increase the net loss per share. Potenlial
dilutive equily shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period. unless they have been issued at a laler date. Dilutive potential equity shares are
determined independently for cach period presented.

() Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an out{low of resources will be
required 1o settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are nol recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required Lo scttle the present obligation at the end ol the reporting period. The
discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflecls current market assessments ol the Lime value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
The increase in provision duge Lo passage ol lime is recognised as an interest expense.

(u) Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recagnised as a linancial liabilily at the time the guarantec 1s issued. ‘The liability is initially measured at tuir value and subsequently at the
higher of the (1) amount determined in accordance with the expected credit Joss model as per Ind AS 109 and Lhe amount initially recognised less. where appropriate,
cumulauve amount of income recognised in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 1S, “The fair valuc of linancial guarantees is determined as the present value ol the
difference in net cash flows between the contractual payments under Lhe debt instrument and the paymenls that would be required without the guarantee, or the estimated
amount that would be payablc to a third party for assuming the obligation.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables ol associales arc provided for no compensation, the fair values are accounted lor as contributions and recognised as
part of the cost ol the investments.

3. Use of judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial slatements in conlonmity with Ind AS requires estimales and judgements that alTect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities. revenues and
expenses. and related disclosures of contingent liabilities in the linancial statements and accompanying notes. Estimates are used for, but not limiled to uselul lives of
property. plant and equipment. accounting for right-of-use assels and estimation of and recoverabilily of deferred tax balances. Actual results could difler materially rom

these estimates.

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements and estimates that affect the application ol the Company’s accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and ¢xpenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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3. Use of judg ts and estimates (continaed)
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognised prospectively.
(i) Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included
in the following note:

Note 4(iii): Lease term: Whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise extension options.

(ii) Assumption and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties at the reporting date that have a risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year is included in the following note:

Note 25: Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried forward can be utilised.

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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4.(i)

4 (ii)

Property, plant and equipment
Particulars ] Leasehold Planf and Cor'nputcr QFﬁce Furniture & Total
improvement machinery equipment equipment fixtures
Gross block
As at April 01, 2023 1,741 204,723 2,737 3,632 193 213,026
Additions - 9.262 . 103 - 9.365
Disposals - (1.574) = (209) " (1.783)
As at Viarch 31, 2024 1,741 212,411 2,737 3.526 193 220,608
Additions - 2,135 - = 3 2,135
Transfers (refer note 35(i)) (1,741) (214,546) (2,737) (3.526) (193) (222.743)
Disposals - - - - = -
As at March 31, 2025 = - - = = -
Accumulated depreciation
As at April 01,2023 297 25,120 889 1,084 104 27,494
Charge for the year 319 34,801 833 787 7 36.811
Disposals - (414) - (67) - (481)
As at March 31, 2024 616 59.507 1,722 1,804 175 63,824
Charge for the year 155 15,227 312 309 5 16,007
Transfers (refer note 35(i)) 771) (74,734) (2,034) (2.113) (180) (79.831)
Disposals - - . - - 2
As at March 31, 2025 - - - - - -
Net carrying amount
As at March 31,2024 1,125 152,904 1,015 1,722 18 156,784
As at March 31, 2025 - - - - - -
Capital work in progress (CWIP)
Particulars Total
As at April 01, 2023 6,955
Addilions 1,715,745
Capitalised during the year -
As at March 31, 2024 1,722,700
Addilions 2,134,834
Transters (refer note 35(i)) (1.448)
Capitalised during the year -
As at March 31, 2025 3.856.087
(a) Ageing of capital work in progress as at March 31, 2025
Amount in CWIP for the period of
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years iordtRn's Total
years
Project in progress 2,133,387 1,722.700 - - 3,856,087
Total 2,133,387 1,722,700 - - 3,856,087
(b) Ageing of Capital work in progress as at March 31, 2024
Amount in CWIP for the period of
farticulacs Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years RYoRRE™ Topal
vears

Projecl in progress 1.722.700 - - - 1.722.700
Total 1,722,700 - - - 1,722,700

Note: There are no projects whose completion is overdue or exceeded its costs compared to ils original plan at the end of Lhe year or previous year.

Capitalisation of the expenditure

Following are the directly attributable costs which are capitalized. Consequently, expenses disclosed under the Employee Benefit Expenses note is net of

amounts capitalized by the Company.

Employee benefil expenses
Fmance cost

Cosl of materials consumed
Depreciation on right-of-use assets

Other cxpenses

March 31,2025 March 31,2024
275117 94,550
217,740 116.020

74310 -
43,375 21,722
448.040 98.990
1,058,782 331,282
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4 (iii) Right-of-use assets

The Company has entered into agreements with lessors Jor taking

factory and office premises on lease. The lease term is for a period ol 10 years with escalation clauses

in the lease agreements of premises. Measurement of right-of-use assets (ROU) and lease liabilities are calculaled based on the fixed leasc rentals payable under the

lease agreements and componenl towards mainlenance and any variable payments are excluded.

Particulars Building Total

Gross block

As at April 01, 2023 213,994 213,994
Additions 427,399 427,399
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2024 641,393 641,393
Additions 981 981
Transfers (refer note 35(1)) (208.631) (208,631)
Disposals x =
As at March 31, 2025 433,743 433.743
Accumulated depreciation -
As at April 01, 2023 11,849 11,849
*Charge for the year 41,925 41,925
Disposals - -
As at March 31,2024 53,774 53,774
*Charge for the year 53.772 53,772
Transfers (refer note 35(i)) (40.887) (40,887)
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2025 66,659 66,659
Net carrying amount -
As at March 31, 2024 587,619 587,619
As at March 31,2025 367.084 367.084

* Depreciation of right-ol-use assets includes an amount of 43,375 (March 31, 2024:% 21,722) which has been capilalized and taken to Capital work in progress.

(a) Lease liability

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Current 18,945 23.628
Non-current 376,331 572,428
Total 395,276 596.056

b) Company's lcase liabilities, by maturity, are as follows:
y )

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Less than one year 60,964 85,592
Belween one and five years 275,902 387,359
Aller lve years 290,127 497.238
Total minimum lease payments 626,993 970,189
Less: imputed interest 231,717 374.133
Present value of lcase pavments 395,276 396.056

(c)The following are the amounts recognized in the statement of profit and loss and statement of cash {lows:

Particulars

March 31, 202§

Vlarch 31, 2024

Depreciation ol right-ol-use assets 10,397 20,202
Interest expense on lease liabilities 1.217 12,599
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets (included in other expenses) 747 478
Cash outilow for leases (principal and interest) 20.036 20,610

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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4 (iv) Intangible assets

Particulars Computer software Total

Gross block

As at April 01,2023 970 970
Additions = -
Disposals = -

As at March 31, 2024 970 970
Additions - -
Transfers (refer note 35(3)) (970) (970)
Disposals - .
As at March 31, 2025 - -
Accumulated depreciation

As at April 01, 2023 275 275
Charge for the year 163 163
Disposals (33) (33)
As at March 31, 2024 405 405
Charge for the year 82 82
Transfers (refer note 35(i)) (487) (487
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2025 = =
Net carrying amount

As at March 31, 2024 565 565
As at March 31, 2025 - -

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
5 (i) Non-currentinvestments
Investment in equity instruments (Unquoted, at cost)
Investment in subsidiary
Aequs Home Appliances Private Limited (refer note 35(11)) 50,100 50,100
(5,010,000 (March 31, 2024: 5,010,000) equity shares of 10 each fully paid up]
Less: Provision for impairment (50.100) (8.900)
2 41,200
Apggregate amount ol unquoted investments - 41,200
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value ol investments 50.100 8,900
5 (ii) Current investments
Investment in mutual funds (quoted)
Nil (March 31, 2024: 58,743.786 units) in ABSL Liquid Fund = 22,655
- 22,635
Aggregate amount ol quoted investments and market value thereof = 22,055
5 (iii) Tradc receivables
(Unsecured)
Trade rcceivables from contracts with customers - other than related partics (considered good) - 44,960
Less: Loss allowance = (419)
Total trade receivables - 44,541
Ageing of trade receivables as on March 31, 2025
. Outstanding for following periods from due date
Particulars l::vl::ll':g Notdue | Less than 6 | 6 months - | 1-2 years | 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Months 1 year
Undisputed trade receivables
considered good - - - - - - - -
Less: Loss allowance - - = - - - - it
Total trade receivables - - - - - - - -
Ageing of trade receivables as on March 31, 2024
Unbilled Outstanding for following periods from due date
Particulars revenue | Notduc | Lessthan6 | 6 months-| 1-2years | 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Months 1 year
Undisputed trade receivables
considered good 385 27.609 14,886 1,661 400 19 - 44960
Less: Loss allowance - - = - (400) (19} - 419)
Total trade receivables 385 27,609 14,886 1,661 - - - 44,541
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
5 (iv) Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
- in current accounts 198.761 18.252
- Deposits with original maturity of' 3 monihs or less 10,002 107,526
Cash on hand 6 3
208,769 125,781
Note:
There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting period and prior period.
5 (v) Bank balances other than above
Margin money deposils 163,351 22,950
Deposits with original maturily of more than 3 months but less than 12 months - 10,000
Interest accrued . - 420
163,351 33,370

Note:
Margin money deposits arc against Letters of Credit issued in favour of vendors for purchased materials.

(This space is imentionally lefi blank)
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As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
§ (vi) Other financial assets
(unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise specified)
Non current
Security deposits 38,473 58.938
Deposits with banks with remaining maturity of more than onc year 15,850 -
Deferred business consideration (refer note 35(i)) 300,528 -
354,851 58,938
Current
Reccivable from related parties (refer note 26) 633 57
Deferred business consideration (refer nole 35(i)) 18,031 -
18,664 57
6 Other assets
(i) Non current
Capital advances 67,367 73,386
Deferred expenses 315,172 23,119
382,539 96,505
(ii) Current
Advance o suppliers 24,156 7,630
Advances to employees 704 64
Dcferred expenscs 79,625 499,745
Balance with statutory authorities 292,337 212,955
397,322 720,394
Less : Provision for advances to suppliers considered doubtful = (1.561)
397,322 718,833
6A Income tax assets
Advance tax [net of provision for tax: ¥ Nil (March 31, 2024: Z Nil)} 8.667 910
8.667 910
7 Inventories
Raw matcrials - 43866
Work-in-progress A 9,602
Finished goods ] 12,846
Stores and spares - 2,478
- 68,792
Less: Provision for slow moving invenlories - (5,915)
- 62,877
Notes:
(1) Raw material includes goods in transit amounting 2 Nil (March 31, 2024: % 87)
(ii) Raw materials includes packing malerial amounting 2 Nil (March 31, 2024: % [,265)
(i1i) Stores and spares includes goods in transit amounting  Nil (March 31, 2024: 2 Nil)
(iv) Provision for slow moving inveniory includes provision in respect of:
Raw materials ) - 4,505
Work-in-progress - 15
Finished goods - 759
Stores and spares - 635
- 5,914

(v) Write- down of inventories to net realizable value amounted to ¥ Nil (March 31, 2024: Z 1,039). These were recognized as an expense during the year and included in
‘Changes in inventories of work in progress and finished goods’ in statemenl of profit and loss.

(vi) Refer note 33 for informalion on lien/charge against inventorics.

(This space is intentionally: left blank)
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8 Equity share capital

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
No. of shares Amount (%) No. of shares Amount (%)
(i) Authorised equity share capital
Equity shares ol €10 each 760,000,000 7,600,000 760,000,000 7,600,000
760,000,000 7.600.000 761,000,000 7,600,000
(i) Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity share capital
Equity shares of €10 each 85,474,803 B34.748 63.371.853 653.719
85,474,803 854,748 65,371,853 653,719

(a) Reconciliation of the number of shares and suthorised at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:

n March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Particulars
No. of shares Amount (%) No. of shares Amount (3)
At the beginning of the year 760,000,000 7,600,000 41,000,000 410,000
Add: Issued during the year - - 719,000,000 7,190,000
Qutstanding at the end of the year 760,000,000 7,600,000 760,000,000 7,600,000
[b) Reconciliation of the number of shares issued and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:
q March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Particulars = -
No. of shares Amount (3) No. of shares Amount (3)
At the beginning of the year 65,371,853 653,718 36,851,763 368,518
Add: Issued during the year 20.102,950 201,030 28,520,090 285,20)
Outstanding at the end of the year 85,474,803 854,748 65,371,853 653,719

{c) Terms & rights attached to equity shares
The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company’s residual assets on

winding up. The equity shareholders are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The voting rights of an equily shareholder are in proportion to his/its
share of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company. Voling rights cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which any call or other sums presently payable has
not been paid. Failure to pay any amount called up on shares may lead to their forfeiture.

On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residuat assets of the Company, remaining after distribution of all preferential

amounts, in proportion to the number of equity shares held,

(d) Details of shares held by holding/ultimate holding company

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Name of the sharcholder

No. of shares Amount () No. of shares Amount (%)
Aequs Limited (Formerly known as Aequs Private Limited) 85,474,803 854,748 65,371,853 653,719
Total 85,474,803 854,748 65,371,853 653,719
(¢) Details of share holders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
Name of the shareholder No. of shares % holding
As at March 31, 2025
Aequs Limited (Formerly known as Aequs Private Limited) 85,474,803 100%

As at March 31, 2024
Aequs Limited (Formerly known as Aequs Private Limited) 65,371,853 100%

() There are no instances of shares allotted as fully paid by way ol bonus shares and shares bought back during the current and previous reporting periods.

(g) There are no shares issued for consideration other than cash during the current year and prior year.

(h) In May 2023, unsecured loan from Aequs Limited (Formerly known as Aequs Private Limited) was converted into equity. Allotment of 810.810 shares pursuant to
conversion of loan 0f 21,49,99,985 received from Aequs Limited (Formerly known as Aequs Private Limited), issue price is T18,50 per share.

(i) Details of shareholding of Promoters:

: No. of shares % of total number of shares % of change during
Name of the Promoter
March 31.2025 | March 31. 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31. 2024 the year
Aequs Limited (Formerly known as Aequs Private 85,474,803 65.371,853 100%! 100%) 0%
Limited)

(This space is intentionally lefi blank)
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9 Other equity As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Retained earnings (639,192) (513.427)
Securities premium 2,205,711 1,139,230
Common control capital reserve 6,739 6.739
Share options outstanding account 6,487 4,046
Other reserves 586,862 586,583
Total Other Equity 2,166,607 1.223.172

Nature and purpose of reserves

(a) Retained earnings
Relained eamnings comprises of prior and current year's undistributed eamings/ loss after tax.

(b) Securities premium
Securilies premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilized in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act 2013.

(¢) Common control capital reserve
This represents the excess of net assets acquired by the Company over the fair value consideration payable on common control acquisition.

(d) Share options outstanding account

Share options outstanding account represents the [air value of share options granted to the employees of the Company by Aequs Limited, Holding Company, which will
be settled by allotting the shares of the issuer of the oplions. There is no cross charge that is being done by Aequs Limited with respect to this cost. Based on the
assessment carried out by the Management. the impact of the stock oplions issued to the employee of the Company is not material, hencc the disclosures as envisaged
under Ind AS 102 are not made in these financial statements.

(c) Other reserves
Other reserve comprises of amount towards fair value of financial guarantee received from MFRE Privale Trust 2 7,013 (March 31, 2024: Z 7,013), Aequs Limiled
409,783 (March 31, 202:4: ¥ 409,504) and Aequs SEZ Private Limited : 89,067 (March 31, 2024: ¥ 89,067).

Other reserve comprises of amount towards fair value ol financial guarantce reccived from various entities within the group (including entilies under common control)
against borrowings of the Company for which no consideration is being paid by the Company.

Note: For movement in other equity. refer 'Statement of changes in equify".

A. Reserves and Surplus

(i) Retained earnings As at As al
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Opening balance (513.427) (252,625)
Loss for the year (125,333) (260,299)
[tems of other comprehenstve income / (loss) recognised directly in retained eamings
- Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations (432) (503)

Closing balance (639,192) (513,427)

(ii) Securitics premium

Opening balance 1.139.230 73,855
Premium received on equity shares issued during the year 1.068.981 1,069,799
Transaction costs arising on share issues (2,500) (4,424)

Closing balance 2,205,711 1,139,230

(iii) Common coatrol capital reserve

Opening balance 6,739 6.739
Arising from common control acquisition - -

Closing Balance 6,739 6,739

(iv) Share options outstanding account

Opening balance 4,046 2,297
Employee stock option expense 2,441 1,748

Closing balance 6,487 4,046

(v) Other reserves
Opening balance 586.583 61.449
Finance guarantee received during the year 279 525,133

Closing balance 586,862 586,583
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10

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

(i) Borrowings
Non current:

Tenm loan (secured) 1,496,031 631.943
1,496,031 631,943
Less: nterest accrued but not due on borrowings 9,849 2,884
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings 253391 9,764
1,232,791 619,295
Current :
Working capilal facilities Irom banks (secured) - 6,263
Loan from related parties (unsecured) 180,000 :
Current maturities of long-lenn borrowings 253,391 9.764
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 9.849 2.884
443,240 18,911

Notes:

(a) HDFC Bank: Term loan of % 20,00,000 taken by the Company with an outstanding balance of Z 1,012,670 as at March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: % 411,023 and
carries an interest 8.95% p.a. (linked to T-bill 3 months) and is repayable in Door to Door tenor of 78 months from the date of first disbursemenl, moratorium period
of 18 months and repayment period of 21 quarterly repayments. commencing from March 2025 and ending in March 2030 and is secured by hypothecation of plant &
machincery, collateral security over parcel of land & building owned by M!S Aequs SEZ Privale Limited (to the exient of value of Land provided as Collateral), the
personal guarantee ol Mr. Aravind S Melligzri, Executive Chainman and Chicf Executive Officer of the Group and corporate guarantec given by M/S Aequs SEZ
Private Limited (to the extent of value of Land provided as Cellateral) and Aequs Limited (Formerly known as Aegus Private | imited). An amount of 2 9 508 (March
31, 2024: T 11,408) has been adjusted against the foan on account ol unamortized loan processing chargces.

(b) Karmataka Bank: Term loan of ¥ 984,000 taken by the Company with an outstanding balance of T 484,992 as at March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: ¥ 201,791) and
carries an interest al 6 M T-bil!~2.77% p.a and is repayable in Door Lo Door lenor of 78 months from the date of first disbursement, moratorium period of [18
months| and repayment period of {21 quarterly repayments]. commencing (rom March2025 and ending in March2030 and is secured by hypothecation ol plant &
machinery, collateral security over parcel ol land & building owned by M/S Aequs SEZ Private Limited (1o the extent of value of Land provided as Collateral), the
personal guarantee of Mr. Aravind S Melligeri, Executive Chairman and Chicl Executive Officer of the Group and corporate guaranlee given by M/S Aequs SEZ
Private Limited (1o the extent of value of Land provided as Collateral) and Aequs Limited (Formerly known as Aequs Private Limited), An amount ol'Z 1,973 (March
31, 2024: 2 2,367) has been adjusted against the loan on account of unamortized loan processing charges.

(¢) HDFC Bank: Term loan taken by the Company carries an interest at YRS MCLR = 2.50% p.a and is repayable in 60 monthly instalments (including current
mortarium period of 9 months) and is secured by hypothecation of plant & machinery, collateral security over parcel ol land & building owned by M/s. MFRE
Private Trust, the personal guaranice of Mr. Aravind S Melligeri, Cxecutive Chaimman and Chiel Executive Officer of the Parent Company and corporale guarantee
given by M/s. MFRE Private Trust. An amount ol Nil has been adjusted against the loan on account of unamorlized loan processing charges. This loan lacilily was
closed during the current period.

(d) Canara Bank: Term loan aken by the Company carries an interest al - Present RLLR 8.30% - 3% CRP over RI.LR-0.8% Liquidity premium and is repayable in 8
yeurs 6 months monthly instalments (including repayment holiday period of 18 months) and is sccured by hypothecation of plant & machinery/cquipment,
miscellaneous Asscts and electrical installation, collaleral security over parcel of land & building owned by M/s Aequs SEZ private limited | Lhe personal guaranlee
ol"Mr. Aravind S Mclligeri, Exccutive Chairman and Chicef Exceutive Officer of the Parent Company and comorate guarantee given by M/S Acqus SEZ Private
Limiled and the Parent Company. This temn loan (ac:lity closed during the yeac ended March 31, 2024,

(¢) The term loans are reduced by Ind AS adjustments for unamortised linancial guarantee received amounting to T Nil, unamortised transaction cost (loan processing
charges) received amounting to Z11.480

(D) Loan from related parly pertains to unsecurcd loan availed by the Company from Aequs Limited (formerly known as Acqus Private Limited) ¥ 180.000 (March
31.,2024: T Nil) with interest @ 12% p.a. These loans are repayable on demand.

(2) Working capital facilitics taken by the Commpany from HDFC bank includes Letter of Credit and Cash Credit (CC). Working capital facilities are sccured by
hypothecation ol raw material, semi-finished goods, linished goods, existing and future receivables. Collateral security includes. parcel of land and building owned by
M’s. MERE Private Trust and hypothecation charges on unencumbered plant and machineries and other fixed assets of the Company. Personal guarantee given by
Mr. Aravind Melligeri. Executive Chainnan and Chiel Executive Officer of the Parent Company. CC carrics interest @ 3T-Bill 3 Months 7.03% - Spread 4.01% p.a.
This factiity has been closed during the current period,

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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10 (i) Borrowings (continued)

Details of quarterly statements of current assets filed by the Company with the bank and reconciliation with the books of account for the year ended March

31, 2025:
1. Inventories
Amount as
Particul i Gross amount | reported in the Amount of
For the quarter ended Name of bank| ' " l,t}l - . as per books of quarterly o Reason for discrepancies
sccurities provided difference
account return/
statements
Jun-24 HDFC Bank [nventories 59,471 39,471 - =
2. Trade receivables
Amount as
. reported in the 5
Al t ol .
For the quarter ended Name ol bank Pa.rflculars f'r Amount as per quarterly ‘moun ° Reason for discrepancics
securities provided | books of account dilference
return/
statements
Jun-24 HDFC Bank Trade receivables 50,409 50,409 =
Details of quarterly statements of current assets filed by the Company with the bank and reconciliation with the books of account for the year ended March
31, 2024:
1. [nventories
Amount as
Particulars of Gross amount | reported in the T —
For the quarter ended Name of bank a.r_lcu . f] as per books of quarterly ™ Reason for discrepancies
securities provided difference
aceount return/
statements
Jun-23 40,534 53,749 (13,215) Refer note (a)
Sep-23 . 84,246 102.082 (17.837) Refer note (a)
1IDFC Bank Inventor ! )
Dec-23 ank ) inventories 99,609 14,468 (14,859) Refer note (a)
Mar-24 62,877 58,676 4,201 Refer note (b)
Notes:
(a) Provision [lor inventory not considered in stock stalements for the first 3 quarlers as per bank requirements,
(b) Deviation due Lo revaluation of inventory during year end book closing process.
2. Trade receivables
Amount as
. reported in the
For the quarter ended Name of bank Pa.rl:lculars ,Of ittt ) quarterly A.moun(’ of Reason for discrepancies
securities provided | books of account i difference
return/
statements
Jun-23 32871 34,638 (1,767}
cp-23 . S5 269 1.768)
et HDFC Bank frade receivables o0 £ { ! Refer note (a)
Dec-23 66.319 68.088 (1.769)
Mar-24 44,541 47,170 (2,629)

Notes:

() Inter Company balances, advances to trade receivables, ECL, forex and unbilled revenue not considered in stock stalement to align with the bank requirements.

(This space is intentionally lefi blank)
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10 (ii) Trade payables

12

=)

Current:
Trade payables

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
¥March 31, 2024

- Dues to micro enterprises and small enterpriscs (refer notc 31) 7,104 -
- Dues Lo related parlies (refer note 26) 9,168 18,827
- Other trade payables 190:836 100.215
207,108 119,042
Ageing of trade payables as at March 31, 2025
Outstanding for following periods {rom the due date
Particulars Not d More than 3
5p C— Less than | year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years o Total
year
(i} Undisputed ducs-MSME 3252 3,852 _ . - 7,104
(i1) Undisputed dues-Others 16,208 72,651 3,037 - = 91,896
Unbilled 108.108 - - . = 108,108
Total 127,568 76,503 3,037 - - 207,108
Ageing of trade payables as at March 31, 2024
Qutstanding for following periods from the due date
Particular Notd More than 3
S oreue Less than 1 year| 1-2 Years 2-3 Years ' oryeearan Total
(i) Undisputed dues-MSME . . - - - .
(ii) Undisputed dues-Others - 97,611 220 . - 97,83t
Unbilled 21,211 . - - - 21.211
Total 21.211 97.611 220 - - 119,042
(iti) Other financial liabilities M ANat
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Non current
Deferrad business consideration (refer note 35(it)) - 41,190
- 41,190
Current
Capital creditors (refer note 26 for payables to related parties) 174,550 294,787
Employees related liability 21,283 11,869
Payable Lo related parties (refer note 26) 25,805 38,709
221,638 345,365
Other current liabilities
Slatutory dues payable 19,117 6.182
19,117 6,182
Contract liabilities
Unearned revenue 192,919 38,867
192,919 38,867
Note:
Revenue recognised that was included in contract liability balance as at the beginning of the period.
Sale of finished goods . 1,636

(This space is intentionaily left blank)
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13 Provision for employce benefits
Non-current
Provision for gratuity

Current
Provision for gratuity

Provision for leave obligation

(i) Leave obligations

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
Mareh 31,2024

10.286 4.900
10,286 4,900

722 110
12,882 6,520
13,604 6,636

The leave obligalions cover the Company's liability for camed leave which are classified as other long-term benefits. The amount of provision of ¥ 12,882
(March 31, 2024: R 6.520) is presented as currenl. However, based on past experience, the Company does not expect all employees to take Rull amount of

accrued leave or require payment within nexl 12 months.

(ii) Defined contribution plans

The Company has certain defined contribution plans in the form of provident fund and employees state insurance scheme for qualifying employees. The
contribulions are made to provident fund for employees at the rate of 12% and to employees stale insurance scheme at the rate of 3,25% of basic salary as per
regulations. The contributions are made to a registered provident fund and ESI fund administered by the government. The obligation of the Company is limited
to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual or any constructive obligation. The expensc recognised during the period towards defined

contribution plans is:

Provident Fund
Employees State Insurance
Total

(iii) Defined bencfit obligations
Gratuity

As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
1.459 6.506

103 22

1,562 6,528

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per Payment of Gratuity (Amendment) Act, 2018. Employees who are in continuous service (or a
period of' 5 years are eligible for graluity. The amount of gratuity payable on termination/retiremnent is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed
proportionately for |5 days salary multiplied {or the number of years of service. The gratuity plan is unfunded.

The amounl recognized in the balance sheel and movements in nel defined benefit obligation over the years are as [ollows:

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

(a) Total amount recognised in statement of profit or loss

Current service cost 7,977 1.308
Interest cost/ (income) 387 233
Less: Capitalisation ol expense (refer note 4(ii)) (7,527) =
Total amount recognized in statement of profit or loss (A) 837 1,541
(b) Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income

Actuarial (gains)/losscs arising from changes in

- demographic assumptions 579 (193)
- linancial assumptions 234 193
- experience adjustments (381) 503
Total amount recognized in other comprchensive income (B) 432 503
Total amount recognized in statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income 1,269 2,044

Particulars

For the ycar cnded

For the year ended

4

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(c) Changes in the defined benefit obligation during the year
Opening defined benefit obligation 5.010 3046
Current service cost 7977 1.308
[nterest cost/(inconie) 387 233
Remeasurement (gains) / losses
-arising from changes in demographic assumptions 579 (193)
-arising from changes in financial assumptions 235 193
-arising {rom changes in experience adjustments (381) 303
Liabilities assumed/(seltled) 635 466
Benefits translerred (vefer note 35(1)) (3.445) (640)
Benefits paid %) =
Closing defined benefil obligations 11,008 5,010
Current 722 110
Non current 10.286 4.900
Total - 11,008
Al
\";96
2]
=~
[}
&
2
RS
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13 Provision for employee benefits (continued)

Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions

For the year ended

For the year ended

(2012-14) Ult tablc

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
The significant actuarial assumptions are as follows:
Discount rate per anpum 7.05% 7.50%
Salary escalation rate per annum 10.00% 10.00%
Other actuarial assumptions
Attrition rate
21 to 30 years 9.00% 8.00%
31 (v 40 years 4.00% 6.00%
41 to 50 years 3.00% 4.00%
51to 57 years 1.00% 5.00%
Retirement age 58 Years 58 Years
Mortality table Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives

Mortality Montality

(2012-14) Ul table

Sensitivity analysis
The scnsitivity of the defined benefil abligation to changes in (he weighted principal assumplions is as

under;

Changes in assumption

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31,2024

Discount rate

Defined benellt obligation (DBO) an increase in 50 bps (10,254) (4,694)
Impact of increase in 50 bps on DBO -6.86% -6.31%
Defined benefit obligation (DBO) on decrease in 50 bps 11,846 5.356
Impact of decrease in 50 bps on DBO 7.61% 6.90%
Salary increasc rate

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) on increase in 50 bps 11,767 5.301
[mpact of increase in 50 bps on DBO 6.89% 5.81%
Detined benefit obligation (DBO) on decrease in 50 bps (10,315) (4.726)
Impact of decrease in 50 bps on DBO -6.30% -5.66%

Sensitivity analysis for each significant actuarial assumptions namely discount rate and salary assumptions have been shown in the table above at the end of the
reporting period. showing how the defined benefit obligation would have been affected by the changes. The method used to calculate the liabiiity in these
scenarios is by keeping all the other parameters and the data same as in the base liability calculation except (he parameters to be stressed.

The mortality and attrition does not have a significant impact on the liability hence are nol considered as significant actuarial assumption for the purpose of
sensitivity analysis.

Maturity profile of the defined benefit obligations.
Shown below is the malurity analysis of the undiscounted benefit payments

Particulars Asal As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Less than onc year 722 110
Between one and five years 1,911 784
After live years 36,249 14,489

The weighted average duralion of defined benefil obligation is 14.43 years as of March 31, 2025 ( March 31, 2024: 13.19 years )

Risk exposure

Through its defined benefit plans. the Company is exposed to number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

(i) Market risk (discount rate)

Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets. The discount rate rellects the lime value of
money. An increase in discount rate leads lo decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefils and vice versa. This assumption depends on the yields
on the corporate/government bonds and hence Lhe valuation of liability is cxposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date.

(ii) Longevity risk
The impact of longevity risk will depend on whether the benefits are paid before retirement age or alter, Typically for the benefits paid on or before the
retirement age, the longevity risk is not very matcrial.

(iii) Annual risk

Salary increase assumption

Actual Salary increase that are higher than the assumed salary escalation, will result in increase to the obligation al a rate that is higher than expected.
Attrition/withdrawal assumption

IM actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption, then the benefits will be paid earlicr than cxpected. The impact of this will
depend on whether the benelits are vested as at the resignation date.
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14 Revenue from operations
Revenue from contracts with customers
Sale of finished goods

i5

Other operaling revenue

Scrap sales
Other income

a. There arc no adjustments made to contracl price.

b. There are no unfuifilled performance obligations resulting from contracts
c. Revenue from major customers are as follows:

Year ended

March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

155,775 301.760

155,775 301,760

2,173 9,906

125 24

2,298 9,930

158,073 311.690
—

Year ended March 31, 2025 Year ended March 31,2024
Customer Revenue | % of total revenue Revenue % of total revenue
Customer | 94,272 60%l| 177.773 57%|
Note:
There are no non- current assets which are outside [ndia, hence no separate disclosure given.
Other income
Liabilities no longer required written back = 927
Net foreign cxchange gain - 5,000
Interest income on deferred business consideration (refer note 35(i)) 18,032 -
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 286
Interest income 34,146 9,725
Gain from mutual funds investment 299 3,578
Unwinding of discount on security deposit 2,130 1,209
Miscellaneous income 37 -
54,644 20,815
Cost of materials consumed*
Opening stock 43,866 35,342
Less: Movement in provision for slow moving inventory (4,505) (4,909)
Add: Purchases during the year 133,914 269,565
Less:Transfers (refer note 35(i)) (52.309)
Less: Closing stock . (43,866)
Add: Movement in provision for slow moving inventory - 4,505
Cost of materials consumed 120,966 260.637
Changes in inventories of work in progress and finished goods
Inventory at the end of the year (a)
Work-in-progress - 9.602
Finished goods = 12,846
- 22,448
Transfers (refer note 35(i))
Work-in-progress (8,078) -
Finished goods (7.047) -
(15,125) -
[nventory at the beginning of the year (b)
Work-in-progress 9,602 12,165
Finished goods 12,846 2,380
22,448 14,545
Less: Movement in provision for slow moving invenlory (775) (4,930)
Change in inventories of work in progress and finished goods [(b)-(a)| 6,548 (12.83%)
Employee benefit expenses *
Salarics, wages and bonus 56,245 76,566
Contribution to provident and other funds 1,561 6.528
Graluity 837 1,541
Staff welfare expenses 13,831 11,089
FEmployce stock option cxpense (refer note 9) 244 1,748
72,718 97,472

*Also refer note 4(ir)
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19 Other expenses*

20

21

Consumption of stores and spares
Contract manpowcr
Power and fuel
Subcontracting expenses
Repairs and maintenance
Plant & machinery
Buildings
Others
Legal and professional fees
Audit fees [refer note (i) below)
Freight and forwarding
Management fee
Rental charges [refer note 4(iti)}
Printing and stationery
[nsurance
Rates and taxcs
Travelling and conveyance
Communication
Bank charges
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Provision for doubtful advances and advances written off
Advertisement and business promotion
Net foreign exchange loss
Miscellaneous expenses [refer note (i) below]

(i) Payments to auditors
As statutory auditor:
- Remuneration to auditor
- Reimbursement of expenses

Depreciation and amortisation expense*

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment [refer note 4 (i)]
Amorltisation on intangible assets [refer note 4(iv)]
Depreciation on right-of-use assets [refer note 4(iii)]

Finance cost*

Interest expense on borrowings

[nterest expense on deferred business consideralion (refer note 35(ii))
Financial guaraniec expense

Interest expense on lease liabilities

*Also refer note 4(ii)

[nvestment impairment
Impairment loss on investments

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year cnded
March 31,2024

4,145 9,293
13,443 24,071
6,430 17,592
1,078 2,593
1,304 1,213
6,765 4,186
18,890 10,590
17,038 15,717
1,388 750
1,715 1,201
3 -
747 478
1,168 1,015
1,063 1,882
4,167 3.481
4,147 6,586
9,098 6,649
660 1,291
- 78
1,393 2,537
2,435 2,125
631
670 1,153
98,378 114,481
1,388 750
61 48
1,449 798
16,007 36,811
82 163
10,397 20,202
26,486 57,176
3,427 10272
2,665 3,745
6,185 47,053
1,217 12,599
13,494 73.669
41,200 1,783
41,200 1.783

(This space is intentionally lefi blank)
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23 Fair value measurement

Financial instruments by category

Particulars Level Category March 31, 2025(March 31, 2024
Financial assets

Non current investments - Cost - 41,200

Current investments Level 1 FVTPL - 22,655

Trade receivables - Amortised cost - 44,541

Cash and cash equivalents - Amortised cost 208,769 125,781

Other bank balances - Amortised cost 163,351 33,370
Other financial assets - Amortised cost 373,515 58,995

Total financial assets 745,635 326,542

Financial liabilities

Borrowings - Amortised cost 1,676,031 638,206
Trade payables - Amortised cost 207,108 119,042
Other financial liabilities - Amortised cost 221,638 386,555
Lease liabilities - Amortised cost 395,276 596,056
Total financial liabilities 2,500,053 1,739,859

(i) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are:
(a) recognized and measured at fair value.

(b) recognized and measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial
instruments into different levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows undemeath the above table.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives and equity securities) is based
on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. These instruments are included in Level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (derivative mainly forward contract) is determined
using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

(ii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, capital creditors, cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets and liabilities
are considered to be the same as their fair values, duc to their short-term nature.

For other financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts arc cqual to fair values.

(iii) Investments

The Company accounts the investments in subsidiary at cost, in accordance with Ind AS 27. These investments are tested for impairment
annually.

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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24  Financial risk management

The Company's business activities exposes it (o a variety of financial risks such as liquidity risk, credit risk and market aisk. The Company’s senior management under the supervision
of the Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for 2stablishing and goverming the Company’s risk management and have established policies to identify and analyse the nsks
faced by the Company, They help in identilication. measurement. mitization and reporting all risks associated with he activities of the Company. These risks are identified on a
continuous basis and assessed for the impact on the financial performance. The below table broadly summarizes the sources of financial risk 10 which the entily is exposed to and how

the entily manages Lhe risk,

This below table explaing \he sources of risk which the Company is expoged 10 and how (he Company manages the risk

Particulars Exposure arising from Mcasurement Vanagement
Credit Risk Cash and cash equivalents, otheefAuing unalysis credit ratings Diversification of bank deposits. Customers credit
bank balance. trade receivables| analysis. monitoring of credit limits,

and [inancial asscts mcasured at
amortised cosl.

Liquidity cisk Borrowings and other liabilitics,  [Rolling cash Mow forc Availability of borrowings facilities
Market risk - Foreign exchange Fulure commercial transactions.fCash flow forecasting. sensitivity analysis. Natura! hedging for reecivables and payables.

recognized financial assets and
liabilities not denominated in
[ndian rupee,

Market risk -Inlerest rate risk Long-lerm and short-term|Scnsitivity analysis Maintaining a judicious mix of variable and tixed
borrowings at variable rates rate debt

A Credit risk
Credit risk is a risk where the counterparty will not meet its oblivations under a financial instrument leading o a financial loss. Credit risk arises [rom cash and cash equivalents and

deposits with banks. as well as credil exposures to customers including outstanding receivables, other receivables and loans and deposits.

(i) Credit risk management
Credit risk refers o a risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Company usually deals wilh creditworthy

counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaulls, The exposure is continuously monitored.

(ti) Provision for expected credit losses

The Company’s financial asscts mainly comprise of invesiments, trade receivables. deposits with bank and security depasils. The assessment ol ECL is done as follows:

1) Deposits:

Deposits have negligible or nil risk based on past history of delaults and reasonable forward looking information. Deposits comprises of mainly refundable security deposits made on
buildings (leased premises) taken under operating lease. Since these are assels wilh nil risk. the expecied probability of default is "0%" and hence no provision for expected credit
losses are made in the financial slatements.

2) Deposits with bank:

They are considered 10 be having negligible risk or nil risk. as they are maintained wilh banks having strong credit ratines and the period of such deposits is eenerally not exceeding

onc year.

3) Investments :
It consists of invesiments in subsidiary. Management underiakes impairment assessment on an annual basis and based on the recoverable valuc of the investments, impairment il any.
will be provided (or.

4) Trade reccivables and other dues from related partics
No signilicani expected credit oss provision has been created for trade receivables, Further, receivables are expected to be collected considering the past trend of very limited defaulis
and that the balances are not significantly aged. Full provision is made for balances thal management believes are eredit impaired.

When determining whether the eredit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly sinee initial recognition and when estimating ECLs. the Company considers reasonable and
supporlable information thal is refevant and available without undue cost or effort, This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis. based on the Company’s

historical experience and informed credit assessment. that includes forward-Tooking information.

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - Trade receivables

Particulars Total

As at April 01,2023 -
Charue/(credit) Lo stalement ol profit and loss 419
Ctlisation/reversal of loss allowance -

As at March 31,2024 419
Charge/(credit) to staiement ol profit and loss 2,113
Transfers (refer note 35(i)) (2.334)
Ulilisation/reversal of foss allowance -
As at March 31, 2025 -

B Liquidity risk
Liquidity rsk is a cisk where an entity will encounter difficulty in meeling oblieations associated with financial liabifitics thal are scilled by delivering cash or another financial assel.
Prudent hquidity risk management implies maintaining sufticient cash and the availabiiity of funding through an adequale amount of committed credil facilities (o meet obligations
when due. Due 1o the dynamic natuee of the underlying businesses, Company's treasury maintains fleaibility in funding by mainining availability ol required lunds.

Management monitors rolling forecasts ol the Company's liquidity pusiiion and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expecled cash Mows.
(i) Financing arrangements
The Company has access Lo the lpllowing undrawn bomowing facilites at the end of the neporiing period ai Muating cate ol'interesL:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

A. Expiring within one year (bank overdraft and other facilities) 1.428.135 42,527

B. Lxpiring bevond one year (bank loans) - 2.362.557
1,428.155 2,405,084
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24 Financial risk management (eontinued)

B Liquidity risk (continued)

(ii) Maturities of linancial liabilities

The amounis disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their camrying balances as the impact of discounting is nol
significant.

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities Less than | vear 1 to 5 years More than S years Total

As at March 31,2025

Borrowings* 443,240 1.232,791 - 1.676,031

Trade payables 207,108 » = 207.108

Other financial liabilities 221,638 - - 221,638

Lease liabilities 60,964 275,902 290.127 626.993
932,950 1,508,693 290,127 2,731,770

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities Less than | year 1 to 5 vears More than 5 years Total

As at March 31, 2024

Borrowings* 18911 619,295 % 638,206

Trade payables 118,822 220 - 119,042

Other (inancial liabilitics 345,365 41.190 - 386.553

Lease liabilities 85.592 387.359 497.238 970,189
568,690 1,048,064 497,238 2,113,992

*The amount of borrowings includes interest accrued and current maturities of long term borrowings.

C  Market risk

Market risk is a risk where the fair value or future cash fows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.

(i) Foreign currency risk

The Company is exposed o foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions. Foreign exchange risk arises from luture commercial transactions and recognized assels
and liabililies denominated in a currency that is not the Company's functional currency (INR). The risk is measured through sensitivily analysis of probable movement in exchange
rate as al Lhe reporling period.

The Company primarily imports malerials which are denominated in foreign currency which exposes it to foreign currency risk. Further. any additional cxposure is continuously
monitored and hedging options like forward conlracts shall be taken whenever they arc expected (o be cost effective.

(a) Foreign currency risk exposure

The Company's wxp to foreign currengy tisk at the end of the reporting peried expressed in 2 as against respective forgign curreney are as folluws.

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
JPY EURO CHF USD USD

Financial assets

I'rade receivables - - - - 48.839

Advances to vendors - - 2,674 18,646 2.730

Advances to capital credilors - - - 8.354 24,298

Net exposure to foreign currency risk (assets) - - 2.674 27.000 75.867

Financial liabilities

Trade payables - - 7.084 21420 26.357

Capital creditors 74,393 1.848 263 32309 145.510

Advance from cuslomers - - - - 43.631

Net exposure to foreign currency risk (liability) 74,393 1.848 7.347 53.729 215.498

(b) Sensitivity
The sensilivity of pralit or [oss (0 changes in exehange rates arising from foreien eurrency denominated financial instruments is given below,

Impact on profit after tax

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

USD Sensitivity

INR/USD - Increase by 5% (1.107) (5.784)

INR/USD - decrease by 5% 1.107 5.784

CHF Sensitivity

INR/CILIF - Increase by 5% (194) -

INR/CHF - decrease by 5% 194 .

EURO Scnsitivity

(NR/EUR - Increase by 5% an -

INR/EUR - decrease by 5% 77 &

JPY Sensitivity
INRAPY - Increase by 5% (3.081) -
INRAPY - decrease by 5% 3.081 -
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24 Financial risk management (continued)
C  Market risk (continued)

(ii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will flucluate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the
risk of changes in market interest rales relates primarily to the debt obligations with floating interest rates.

(a) Interest rate risk exposure

The exposure of Company's barrowinus to the interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are included in the table below.

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Variable rate borrowings 1,496,031 638,206
Fixed rate borrowings 575.276 596.056
Total borrowings 2,071,307 1.234.262

Profit & loss is sensitive to higherilower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.

impact on profit after tax
Particulars As at| As al
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest rates - increase by 50 basis points (7,480) (3,191}
interest rates - decrease by 50 basis points 1,480 3,191

(iii) Price risk

Price risk is the risk of a decline in the value of a security or an investment portfolio. The Company is not exposed to such risks, as it has not invested in any such securities.

(Thix space is intentionallv left hlank)
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25 Income taxes

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Current tax
Current tax on profits of the year
Total current tax expense (A)

Deferred tax
Deferred tax expense for the year
Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) (B)

Income tax expense/(benefit) (A+B)

Reconeiliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by applicable tax rate

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Tax expenses under general provision of income tax

Profit before income tax expense (125,333) (260,299)
Tax rate 17.16% 17.16%
Tax at the above rate (21,507) (44,667)
Tax impact of permanent differences 5,547 8,717
Tax impact of business loss and other items on which no deferred tax has been recognized 15,273 35231
Others 638 719
Total tax expense/(bencfit) - =
Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was recognised expire as follows
Year ended p Ycar ended .

Mareh 31,2025 | EXPirydate 1 no 31,2024 Expiry date
Expire 396,083 2026-34 331,950 2025-33
Never expire 58,714 - 58,512 -

The Company has unabsorbed depreciation of 2 58,714 (March 31, 2024: Z 58,512) which does not have any expiry period.

Deferred tax assets recognition:

Deferred tax asset on timing difference and on unabsorbed depreciation and busincss loss carried forward has not been recognised in these accounts in the absence
of reasonable certainty supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable income will be available for set-off. However this position will be
reassessed at every year end and the deferred tax asset will be accounted for, if appropriate. Deferred tax asset as on March 31, 2025 has been arrived as follows :

Deferred tax assets (net)

0 As at As at|
octculars March 31,2025)  March 31,2024
Deferred tax liabilities
Deprec:iation and amortisation . 1,179
Right of use asset (62,991) (100,835}

(62,991) (99,656)
Deferred tax assets
Tax losses and unabsorbed depreciation 78,043 67,003
Lease liability 67,829 102,283
Provision for inventory obsolescence = 1,015
Provisions allowed on payment basis and others - 9,644 4,963

155,516 175.264
Deferred tax assets (net) 92,525 75,608

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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25 Income taxes (Continued)

(a) Movement in deferred tax liabilities

Particulars Depreciz.itiorl and | Right-of-use assets Total
amortisation
Balancc at April 1,2023 (329 (34,688) (35.017)
Recognised in profit or loss - - =
Recognised in OCI - - -
Unrecognised deductible temporary differences 1.508 (66,147)) (64.640)
Balance at March 31, 2024 1,179 (100,835) (99.657)
Balance at April 1, 2024 1,179 (100,835) (99,657)
Recognised in profil or loss E = E
Recognised in OCI - - .
Unrecognised deductible temporary differences (1,179 37.844 36,666
Balance at March 31, 2025 - (62,991) (62,991}
(b) Movement in deferred tax assets
Carry forward Lease liability Provision for Others Total
Particulars losses and inventory
unabsorbed obsolescence
depreciation
Balance at Aprit 1,2023 35,617 31,439 2274 1,868 71,198
Recognised in profit or loss - - - - -
Recognised in OCI - 5 £ = i
Unrccognised deductible temporary diffcrences 31.386 70,844 (1,259) 3.095 104,067
Balance at March 31, 2024 67,003 102,283 1,015 4,963 175,265
Balance at April 1,2024 67,003 102,283 1,015 4,963 175,265
Recognised in profit or loss - - - - "
Recognised in OCI . - - - -
Unrecognised deductible temporary differences 11,040 (34,454) (1,015) 4.681 (19.748)
Balance at March 31. 2025 78,043 67,829 - 9,644 188,517

a. Transfer pricing:

The Finance Act, 2001, has introduced, with effect from assessment year 2002 - 03 (effective April 1, 2001), detailed Transler Pricing Regulations (the
regulations)for computing the taxable income and expenditure from “international transactions ‘between “associated enterprises ‘on an arm’s length’ basis. Further,
the Finance Act, 2012 has widened the ambit of transfer pricing provisions to cover specified domestic transactions. The regulations, interalia, also require the
maintenance of prescribed documents and information including furnishing are part from an accountant within the due date of filing the return of income.

For the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company would be carrying out a study to comply with transfer pricing regulations for which the prescribed certificate of

accountant will be obtained. in the opinion of management, no adjustment is expected to arisc based on completion of Transfer Pricing Study.

(This space is intentionally lefi blank)
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26 Related party disclosures

Name of related party and their relationship

Name of related party where control exists.

Relationship
Ultimate Holding Company

Holding Company
Subsidiary

Relationship
Fellow subsidiaries

Enterprises in which individuals owning
interest in the Company, or their relatives
have control or joint control or significant
influence

Joint Venture of Holding Company

Downstream investment of fellow
subsidiaries

Key Management Personnel :

Name of the related party
: Aequs Inc (100% beneficially owned and controlied by the Melligiri Foundation)

+ Aequs Limited (Formerly known as Aequs Private Limited) (AL)
: Acqus Home Appliances Private Limited (AHAPL) struck off w.e.f. June 27, 2025

Name of the related party

: Aequs Engineered Plastics Private Limited (AEPPL)

: Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited (AFCPPL)

: Aequs Toys Private Limited (ATPL)
Aerostructures-Manufacturing-India-Private Limited (ASMIPL)
: Aerostructure Assemblies India Private Limited (AAI)

: Aequs Aero Machine Inc. (AAM)

: Aequs SEZ Private Limited ('ASEZ')

: MFRE Private Trust

: Hubballi Durable Goods Cluster Private Limited (HDGCPL)
: Quest Global Engineering Private Limited (QGEPL)

: Industrial Knowledge Centre Private Limited (IKC)

: Aequs Cookware Private Limited (ACPL)
: Aerospace Processing India Private Limited (API)

: Koppal Toys Tooling COE Private Limited (KTTPL)

: Dinesh Iyer (Director)

: Suraj Hukkeri (Director)

: Vikas Goel (Dircctor)

: Sambhram Pise (Company Secretary)

¢ Rohit Mulki Hegde (Resigned w.e.f. February 27, 2024)

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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26 Related party disclosures

A. Transactions

’ ) For the year ended| For the year ended
Name Nature of transactions March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
AL Service received = 4,900
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 853 -
Unsecured borrowing availed 180,000 15,000
Repayment of unsecured borrowing o 20,000
Interest expense on loan borrowed 473 155
Expenses incurred on behalf of the Company 399 28,214
Expenses incurred on behalf of related party 1,623 367
Financial guarantee received - 460,666
Financial guarantee expense 59,648 57,333
Financial guarantee terminated 45,846 “
AAM Technical support services 3,784 =
ACPL Expenses incurred on behalf of the Company 2,253
Expenses incurred on behalf of related party 308 .
Deferred business consideration receivable (refer note 35(i)) 300,528 =
Interest on deferred business consideration receivable (refer note 35(i)) 18,031 -
AP| Expenses incurred on behalf of the Company 7 =
AFCPPL Expenses incurred on behalf of related party 85 43
ASEZ Service received 2,896 5,737
Expenses incurred on behalf of the Company 17 -
Expenses incurred on behalf of related party 816 21
Financial guarantee received - 59,229
Financial guarantee expense 9,238 31,432
AHAPL Impairment loss on investments (refer note 35(ii)) 41,200 1,783
Interest on deferred business consideration payable (refer note 35(ii)) 2,655 3.745
Liabilities no longer required written back (refer note 35(ii)) 43,855 -
ASMIPL Expenses incurred on behalf of the Company 94 1,463
Expenses incurred on behalf of related party 36 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 2,738 .
Cost of raw materials consumed - 623
HDGCPL Service received 239,815 231,486
Repayment of lease liability 18,819 8,234
Expenses incurred on behalf of related party - 21
Expenses incurred on behall of the Company 30 -
Interest expenses on lease liability 53.043 12.599
Security deposits given - 44,899
Transfer of lease lability (refer note 35(i)) 183.242 -
ATPL Purchase of asset . 92
Cost of raw materials consumed 129 32
MFRE Private Trust Fair value of the guarantee financial received - 900
Financial guarantee expense 3,305 1.650
AAl Expenses incurred on behalf of related parly 146 -
QGEPL Technical support services 6.346 -
Rohit Mulki Hegde Service received . 2,128
IKC Expenses incurred on behall of related party 234 15
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Related party disclosures
B. Balunces as at the vear end
. As at As at
Name Nature of transactions March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ACPL Deferred business consideration receivable (refer note 35(i)} 300,528 -
Interesl on business purchase receivable 18,031 G
AAM Trade payables 3,250 x
API Dues to related parties 7 -
AHAPL Investment in equity share capital - 41,200
Deferred business consideration payable o 41,190
AL Unsecured borrowings 180,000 =
Interest accrued but not duc on borrowings 436 ]
Dues to relaled parties 22,951 34,459
Trade payables # 4,485
Unamortized fair value of the financial guarantee 325,467 430,961
HDGCPL Security deposit paid 64,593 99,329
Receivable from related partics = 21
Trade payables - 12,735
Advance to suppliers 1,260 -
Capital creditors 7,159 18,534
ASEZ Receivable from related parties 614 21
Trade payables 627 0984
Unamortized fair value of the financial guaraniee 46,188 55,426
ASMIPL Dues to related parties 2,855 4,250
Receivable from related parties 19 -
Trade payables 3,010 623
IKC Receivable from related parties - 15
MFRE Private Trust Unamortized fair value of the financial guarantee - 3,305
Trade payables 180 -
QGEPL Trade payables 2,100 -
Notes:

Company.

. All transactions were made on normal commercial terms and conditions.
. Please refer SOCIE for the corporate guarantees and personal guarantees extended to the Company by the related parties against the borrowings taken by the

. All outstanding balances are unsecured and repayable in cash.

. A letter of continuing financial support has been received from Aequs l.imited (Formerly known as Acqus Private Limited).

. There is no loss allowance for receivables in relation lo any outstanding balances, and no loss allowances has been recognized during the year in respect of
receivables due from relaled parties.

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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27 Capital management

28

29

30

Risk management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable 1o the equity holders of the Company.

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the skarcholder value,

The Company's objectives while managing capital are to:

(i) Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue Lo provide retumns to shareholders and benefits to other stakeholders;

(ii) Maintain optimal capital structure o reduce the cost of capital.

‘The Company monitors capilal using gearing ratio and is measured by net debt (lotal borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents) to equity.

The below table depicts the Company's net debt Lo equity ratio.

Particulars Asat As al
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Net debt (refer nole 32) 1,862,538 1.108.481
Toltal equity 3,021,355 1,876,891
Net debt to equity ratio 0.62 0.59

Note:

The above ralio is caiculated by considering the amount of net debt (including cash and cash equivalents). This is resulting in a deviation between the above ratio and the

debt cquity ratio calculated in Note 34.

Commitments and contingent liabilities

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

(a) Capital commitments
Estimated amounl of contracts remaining 1o be execuled on capital account net of advances and not provided for

(i) Property, plant and equipment

298,953

70,510

Total

298,953

70,510

(b) Contingent liabilitics
There are no reportable contingent Labilities.

Segment information
(a) Description of segments and principal activities

The Company is primarily engaged in a single line ol business of contract manufacturing of consumer producls. The Chiel Operating Decision Maker (CODM) is identified

the Executive Chairman and Chicf Execulive Officer of the holding company, who plans the allocation of resources and assess the performance of the segments. The

Company's CODM reviews the financial information by considering the entity as a whole, hence the operaling segment being the Company as one single segment.

{b) The Company is domiciled in India. The amount ol its revenue from external customers specified by location of customers are presented in the below table:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Ve tions
[n India 154,821 298,630
Overseas 3,252 13,059
Total 158,073 311,690

The CODM reviews the Company as one reporlable segment, hence no further segregation has been done,

Earnings per share

Particulars

Year ended Vlarch

Year ended March

31,2025 31,2024
Total basic earnings per share atiributable to equily share holders of the Company (1.54)) (4.65)
Loss attributable 1o the equity share holders (125,333) (260,299)
Weighted average number of Equity Shares used as the denominator in calculating basic eamings per share §1.429.228 56,022,063

There is no dilution to the basic eamnings per share as Lhere no potentially dilutive equity shares.
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31 Dues to micro and small enterprises

The Company has a process of identifying Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME), as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006 (MSMED Act), by requesting vendor confirmation to the letlers circulated by the Company. Disclosures of dues/payments to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
to the extent such enterprises are identified by the Company, based on the responses received from vendors against request for confirmations. This information has been

determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(i) Principal amount duc to supplicrs registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end. 7.104 =
(ii) Interest due ta suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as al year end 269 N
(i) Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year. 15281 =
(iv)Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registercd under the MSMED Act, beyond the v -
appointed day during the year.
(v) Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, Lo suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day 86 -
during the year
(vi) Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for payments alrcady made 252 -

(vii) Further interest remaining due and payable for carlier years

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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32 Net debt reconciliation

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

A. Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 208,769 125,781
Current borrowings (working capital loans) = (6,263)
Current borrowings (Inter company loans) (180,000) -
Non-current borrowings (including current maturitics) (1,496,031) (631.943)
Lease liabilities (395.276) (596.,056)
Net debt (1.862,538) (1,108.481)
Particulars Other asscts Liabilities from financing activities Total
Cash and cash | Lease liabilities| Non-current Current Current
equivalents borrowings borrowings borrowings
(including (working (Inter company
current capital loans) loans)
maturities)

Net debt as at 1 April 2023 10,407 (183,213) (59.079) (17,458) (5,000) (254,343)
Movement in cash and cash equivalents 115,374 - - - - 115374
New borrowings/ new leases - (420,853) (836,654) - (15,000) (1,272,507
Repayments - 8,010 314,463 11.195 5,000 338,668
Loan converted inta equity - - - - 15,000 15,000
Interest expense - (12,599) (8.675) (1,443) (155) (22,8372)
Interest paid - 12,599 6,160 1,443 155 20,357
Other non-cash adjustments (refer nole 4(ii)) - - (48.158) - - (48,158)
Net debt as at March 31, 2024 125,781 (596.056) (631,943) (6,263) - (1,108.481)
Movement in cash and cash equivalents 104,913 - - - - 104913
New borrowings/ ncw leascs - (983) (933,747) - (180,000) (1,114,730)
Repayments - 18,819 78,290 6,263 - 103,372
Transfers (refer note 35(i)) (21,925) 183,242 - - - 161317
Interest expense - (1.217) (1,608) (1,057) (473) (4.355)
Interest paid 52,758 92,397 1,057 - 146,212
Expense capitalised (refer note 4(ii)) (51,839) (95,963) - 473 (147,329)
Other non-cash adjustments . . (3.457) - (3.457)
Net debt as at March 31, 2025 208.769 (395.276) (1,496.031) - (180.000) (1.862.538)
Assets pledged as security
The carrying amount of assets pledged as seeurity for current and non-current borrowings are:

. As at As at
pactciars March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Current

- T'rade receivables - 44,541
- Other bank balances 33,370
- Cash and cash equivalents 125,781
B. Non financial asscts:

- [nventories (net of pravisions) - 62,877
Total current assets pledged as security - 266,569
Non current
A. Non financial assets:

Property Plant and Equipment . 156,784
Capital work-in-progress 3,856,087 1,722,700
Intangible Assets . 565
Total non-current assets pledged as security 3,856,087 1,880,049
Total assets pledged as security 3.856,087 2,146,618

Note: Total value of the pledge asset is restricted to the outstanding loan balance as at the balance sheet date.
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34 Financial Ratios

Ratios Numerator Denominator March 31, 2025 | March 31,2024 | % of variance Reason for
variance
Current Ratio (times) Current Assets Current Liabilitics 0.85 1.80 -53% Note-2
Debt-Equity Ratio (times) Total Debt Shareholders' Equity 0.69 0.66 4% Note-1
Earnings available for Debt Service |Debt Service (0.79) (0.37) 113% Note-3
Debt Service Coverage Ratio (DSCR) (times)
Return on Equity (ROE) (%) Profit/(Loss) after tax Average Shareholders’ Equity (0.05) (0.24), -79% Note—4
Inventory Turnover Ratio (times) Revenue from operations Average Inventory 5.03 6.01 -16% Note-1
Trade Receivables Tumover Ratio (times) Credit Sales Average Accounts 7.10 6.57 8% Note-]|
Receivables
Net Capital Turnover ratio (times) Revenue from operations Working Capital (1.17) 0.69 -269% Note-5
Trade Payables Turnover Ratio (times) Purchase of goods and other Average Trade Payables 141 4.54 -69% Note-6
Net Profit Ratio (%) Net Profit/(Loss) after tax Revenue from operations (0.79) (0.84)) -6% Note-|
Return on Capital Employed (RoCE) (%) Eamings before interest and tax Capital Employed (0.02)] (0.08)| % Note-4
Return on [nvestment (%) Eamings before interest and tax Average Total Assets (0.03) (0.11) “11% Note-4
Notes:

1. Ratios with deviation below 25%

2. Increase in current borrowing in the cusrent year has caused the variation in current ratio.

3. Increase in borrowings availed compared to previous year has caused the variation in debt service coverage ratio.

4. Decrease in loss has resulted in higher retum on equity, ROCE and return on investment.

5. Decrease in Net Capital Turnover ratio is due to decrease in working capital and in revenue from operation as compared to previous year.
6. The decrease in purchases has resulted in decrease in trade payable turnover ratio.

(This space is intentionally left blunk)
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35
U]

(i)

Business combination

Assets and Habllities transferred to Aegus covkware private limited

On July 11, 2024, the Company has entered inlo an agreement with Aequs Cookware Private Limiled (ACPL) and transferred certain assets and liabilities relating to its
Consumer Durable Goods business unit effective from QOctober 1, 2024. The consideration of 300,528 is receivable alter two years from the effective date of transfer and
interest of 12% p.a. on the outsianding consideration amount is receivable quarterty from the effective dale of transfer.

‘T'he assets and liabilities have been transterred at the values as given in the below table:

As at
September 30, 2024
Category
Property, plant and equipment 142912
Capital work in progress 1,448
Right-of-use asscis 167,744
Intangible assets 484
Inventory 69,675
Trade receivables 101,952
Financial assets 22,644
Cash and cash equivalents 21,925
Other bank balances 3,790
Other assets 86,885
Total Assets 619,459
Financial liabilities 5,554
Trade payables 89414
Employee benefit obligations 6,758
Other liabilities 2,280
Contract ligbilities 31,683
Lease liabilities 183,242
Total Liabilities g 318,931
Net Assets 300,528
Purchase consideration receivable 300,528

Assets and liabilities transferred (rom Aequs Home Appliances Private Limited

Pursuant to the sale agreement dated November 30, 2022, the Company acquired the business of Aequs Home Appliances Privatc Limited (AHAPL), a subsidiary of the
Company, with effect from December 01. 2022, The tolal consideration for the acquisition was 243,855 payable two years from the datc of exceution of the agreement.

During the year ended March 31. 2025, the Board of Directors of lhe Company resolved to initiale the winding-up of AHAPL by way of striking off its name from the
Register of Companies under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Removal of Names ot Companies from the Register of Companies)
Rules, 2016 and, inter-alia, de-recognized, in the books of AHAPL, the receivable from Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited towards the consideration payable.
Consequently, as at March 31, 2025, the Company derecognised the outstanding payable of ¥ 43,855 to AHAPL. Additionally, the Board of Directors assessed the
recoverability of the Company’s investment in AHAPL and recognised an impairment loss of Z 50,100 as on March 31, 2025, which includes an additional impainnent of
< 41,200 recorded during the year. AHAPL was subsequently struck off from the Register of Companies on 27 June 2025, and the company has been dissolved.

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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36 Additional regulatory information required by Schedule 111

(i) Details of benami property held:

No proceedings have been initiated on or arc pending against the Company under the Prohibition of benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016)
(formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder.

(ii) Wilful defaulter:

The Company has not been declared wilful defauller by any bank or financial inslitution or govemment or any government authority.

(iii) Relationship with struck off companies:
The Company has no transactions wilh the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956 other than those disclosed.

(iv) Compliance with number of layers of companies:
The Company does not have any subsidiaries other than the wholly owned subsidiary as disclosed and hence compliance with Section 2(87) of the Companics Act,
2013 read with Companies (Restriction on Number of Layers Rules, 2017) (‘Layering Rules') is not applicable.

(v) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements:
The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or preyious financial year.

(vi) Intermediary transactions:
(a) During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has nol advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b. provide any guarantee. security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimale beneficiaries.

(b) During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has not received any funds from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with
the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or enlities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of lhe Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries)  or
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

(vii) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency:

The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

(viii) Valuation of property, plant and equipment and intangible asset :
The Company has not revalued its Property, plant and equipment or inlangible assets during the current or previous year.

(viii) Undisclosed income :
There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax asscssments under the [ncome Tax Act, 1961, that has not been
recorded in the books of account.

(ix) The Company does not own any immovable properties.
(x) There are no charges or salisfaction which arc yet o be rcgistered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

(xi) The borrowings oblaincd by the Company from bank have been applied for the purposes for which such loans were was taken.

(xit) The Company has borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Refer Note 10 for details of quarterly statements
ol current asscts filed by the Company with the bank and reconciliation with the books ol account for the year ended March 31, 2025,

(xnii) The Company was not required o recognize any provision as at March 31. 2025 under the applicable law or accounling standards. as it does not have any
material [oresceable losses on long-term contracts, The Company did not have any derivative contracts as at March 31, 2025.

(xiv) The Company does not have any Core Investment Group (CIC)as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of [ndia.

37 Corporate Social Responsibility
The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the Corporate Social Responsibility are not applicable to the Company.

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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38 Subsequent events
As part of the overall group restructuring plan, the management of Aequs Home appliances Private Limited has filed an application to the registrar for its name to be
struck off from the register of Companies. The Company received the approval rom the registrar and the Company got struck off w.c.f June 27, 2025.

39 Disclosure as required under section 186(4) of Companics Act, 2013.

Name of Entity Place of | Ownership held | Nature of % of Holding and voting power either directly or Nature of Business
Business by relationship indirectly through subsidiary as at
- March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Aequ.s ore |Belagavi. Aequs Con§u1ner - Manufacturing Kitchen and Home
Appliances Private India Products Private Subsidiary N . Appliances
Limited Limited .80 — :

40 These financial statements are the separate financial statements. The Company has opted for exemption from preparing the consolidated financial statements as per the
applicable accounting standards, as the consolidated financial statements shall be prepared by the holding Company, Aequs Limited (Formerly known as Aequs Private
Limited).

41 The financial statements were approved for issue by Board of Directors-on August 12, 2025.
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